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State of Washington

DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL ADMINISTRATION

Office of State Procurement

Rm. 201 General Administration Building, P.O. Box 41017 ( Olympia, Washington 98504-1017 ( (360) 902-7400

http://www.ga.wa.gov 

RFP Amendment

	IFB/RFQ Reference #:
	09205

	Title:
	Office Supplies, Toner, and Paper (Desktop Delivery)

	Amendment number:
	2

	Date issued:
	11/08/05


This RFP is amended as follows:

	Purpose:
	The purpose of this amendment is to extend the opening date and time, as well as to post an important addition to the Q and A.

	
	Amendment must be submitted with bid.  All other Terms, Conditions, and Specifications remain unchanged.



	Attachments:
	N/A


	Previously scheduled opening date and time
	
	New opening date and time

	
11/15/2005
02.00 pm PST
	
	11/17/2005
02.00 pm PST

	
	
	

	Aleksey Belov
	
	11/08/2005


	Bidder to complete the following:

	Company:
	

	Authorized Representative:
	

	Federal ID #:
	

	Address:
	

	Phone/Fax:
	

	Email:
	


	Signature
	
	Date


Additional Question and Answer:
Q:  The bids states bidders are required to supply 95% of the items on the essential list to be compliant.  Is this statement true for the non-essential lists?
A:  While there isn't a specific percentage of non-essentials list items proposers are expected to bid on, please keep in mind that proposers must bid on ALL specified items in the non-essentials list that are available to them through independent distribution channels.

The end of the document 

RPF Amendment # 1
	RFP  Reference #:
	09205

	Title:
	Office Supplies, Toner, and Paper (Desktop Delivery)

	Amendment number:
	1

	Date issued:
	11/02/2005


This RFP is amended as follows:

	Purpose:
	The purpose of this amendment is to change/clarify requirements and publish the Question and Answer document (Attachment A) for Office Supplies, Toner, and Paper (Desktop Delivery) RFP# 09205 (please refer to page 2 of the amendment for details).

	
	All other Terms, Conditions, and Specifications remain unchanged.



	Attachments:
	Attachment A


	Previously scheduled opening date and time
	
	New opening date and time

	11/09/2005

02.00 pm PST
	
	11/15/2005

02.00 pm PST

	
	
	

	Aleksey Belov, Contract Consultant
	
	11/02/2005


Amended items:
1. The Proposal Opening Date has been changed from Wednesday, November 9, 2005 at 2:00 PM to Tuesday, November 15 at 2:00 PM. (Page 1 of the original RFP#09205)
2. Please note that “Curtis Young” toner cartridges are “remanufactured” cartridges, not “new.”  (Appendix A.2, lines 22-31; Appendix A.3 362-363).
3. Questions and Answers document is included with amendment #1 as an Attachment A (please refer to page 3 of this document).

The end of the document

Attachment A

Questions and Answers

for RFP 09305

1. Q:  In order to provide the best possible response, we request additional time to respond to both RFPs.  

A:  The Proposal Opening Date for both RFPs has been changed to Tuesday, November 15 at 2:00 PM (a six (6) calendar day extension). 
2. Q:  We suggest extending the deadline for submitting questions to Friday, November 4, 2005.

A:  The formal deadline for submitting questions was October 31 and proposers were given eight (8) full business days to submit questions.  However, we will accept additional questions through Friday, November 4.  
3. Q:  Which vendors participated in pre-proposal conference?  

A: 
Xerox 

Office Max



Office Depot



Unisource



Spicers



Corporate Express



Pacific Northwest Business



Staples



Washington Business Equipment



MeadWestvaco



West Sound Data Solutions



AMS Laser



Vision Business Products



JD Rahming



Grays Harbor Paper



Global Resource Group



New Century



Evergreen Computer Products

4. Q:  Can a proposer bid a functionally equivalent product instead of an exact match?

A:  A proposer must bid on all specified items that are available to it through independent distribution channels.  During the cost evaluation, only bids on exact matches will be evaluated.  In the case of house brand items (i.e. “Office Max” brand or “Corporate Express” brand items), all functionally equivalent items will be considered exact matches.  

In addition to bidding on specified products, proposers are encouraged to bid substitute items that are lower in cost but equal in quality and performance.  These bids will not be evaluated, but the State may work with awarded vendors to incorporate some of these items into the Essentials List(s).  

5. Q:  What happens when a vendor doesn’t have access to an Essentials List item                      through independent distribution channels?

A:  The State understands there are some items that certain vendors won’t be able to access through independent distribution channels.  This is the reason why vendors are expected to bid on at least 95% (rather than 100%) of all Essentials List items in the desktop delivery RFP, and on at least 95% of Office Supplies Essentials List items in the bulk RFP.  

6. Q:  Is the 95% Essentials List coverage referenced in the RFP referring to line-items or contract value?

A:  The 95% coverage expectation is based on line-items.  

7. Q: Why aren’t calendars on the bulk purchasing Office Supplies Essentials List?

A:  The items on the bulk purchasing Essentials Lists are ones that Central Stores intends to stock in its warehouse going forward.
8. Q:  Delivery 5 days after receipt of order for truckload or railcar load delivery of paper will be difficult.  Can you change this requirement?

A:  We understand your concerns, and are increasing the delivery time for railcar loads of paper to 15 days after receipt of order.  All other delivery requirements remain the same.  In the case of truckloads of paper, please note than Central Stores’ paper requirements are fairly stable and the awarded supplier can work with Central Stores to develop an advance delivery plan.
9. Q:  Is the state aware that major paper suppliers are switching their level of recycled content from 30% to 10% starting in early 2006?  Can the State update its paper Essentials List to reflect this change?

A:  The State was not aware of this anticipated change.  Please provide supporting documentation so the State can look into this issue further.  Proposal requirements regarding paper will not change.  At the present time, the State’s recycled paper specifications are tied the Governor’s Executive Order 05-01 that states that recycled paper must have a minimum of 30% post consumer recycled content.  

10. Q:  Please clarify whether it is 10% of the entire essentials list or 10% of each product category within the Essentials list.  (RFP09205 Pg 12; Section 4.2)

A:  At the contract negotiation event, each apparently successful proposer may ask the state to waive the Maximum Contract Item Pricing for no more than 10% of the line items in each product category (i.e. Office Supplies, Toner, or Paper) for which it is the apparently successful proposer.

11. Q:  How will cost be evaluated when some vendors don’t bid on a specific SKU, but others do?

A:  The cost evaluation will be done on the subset of SKUs for which all responsive proposers have submitted a bid.  Please keep in mind that if a proposer does not bid on a sufficient number of Essentials List items, it may not be deemed responsive (see Section 6.4 B for details).

12. Q:  I would like to propose an increase in the minimum order size from the current amount of $50.  This would be in the best interest from an environmental, traffic management, and resource/cost management perspectives.

A:  $50 is a reasonable minimum order size.  An increase would not meet end user needs and would lead to off-contract purchasing.  
13. Q:  The minimum order size for toner should be $100.  If an order is less than $100 then it should be charged freight.  It is difficult to include shipping in an order less than $100.

A:  We are unable to honor this request due to end user needs.  
14. Q:  Who are the members of the evaluation teams for these two RFPs?

A:  Each evaluation team consists of a representative sample of state stakeholders.

15. Q:  Who is responsible for certifying the recycled content of paper?

A:  As stated in the RFPs, proposers shall submit with their proposal a letter of certification from the paper mill for each recycled paper item, verifying that the paper offered meets or exceeds recycled content requirements.

16. Q:  Does the State want weekly or monthly reporting (Appendix D)?

A:  The reporting outlined in Appendix D will be due on a monthly basis.
17. Q:  We do not carry Hewlett Packard brand cartridges and do no have access to them. We have a compatible cartridge that I would like to bid on. Can I bid or does it have to go substitute?
A:  We ask you to bid on all items that you have access to through independent distribution channels.  Your bid for HP compatible cartridges must go in the “Substitute” columns in Appendix A, and will not be evaluated for cost.

18. Q:  Can you please clarify, especially on paper, how long the paper guarantee has to stay in effect? We cannot bid a 3 year price.
A:  As stated in the RFPs, after a first 90-day fixed price period following contract execution, price revisions may be considered at the beginning of every quarter (1st day of January, April, July and October) or on a schedule mutually agreed upon by the State and the Contractor.

19. Q:  We are a small manufacturer of office supplies (non-toner and non-paper) and would like to bid on, for example, sheet protectors.  

A:  It is not possible to bid only on specific sub-categories (i.e. sheet protectors) within the Office Supplies product group.  The State is looking for proposers who can bid on 95% or more of the Essentials Lists (see Section 6.4 B of each RFP for details regarding this requirement).  

20. Q:  Is the process expecting us to get pricing from the suggested manufacturer on the Essentials List, then in the substitute columns provide our pricing for our product?  Or can we just provide our pricing for our product in the substitute columns?

A:  We ask you to provide your pricing for the exact items specified on the Essentials List in the “Bid Price” column of the “Specified Product” sections in Appendix A.  This is the only pricing that will be evaluated in the cost evaluation process.  In addition, you are encouraged to propose substitute items that are equal in quality and performance in the “Substitute Product” columns.  This pricing for substitutes will not be evaluated.
21. Q:  Because we are only providing substitute products should we not even be responding to the RFP?  Since we will be offering substitute (yet of equal or better quality and service) products, am I at a disadvantage?

A:  In order to successfully compete in this solicitation process, you should be   capable of bidding on 95% to 100% of the specified products on the Essentials Lists for the product categories you are responding to (see section 6.4 B of each RFP for details).  Each Essentials List reflects the needs of the end user. 
22. Q: As an out-of-state vendor, what disadvantages or additional challenges will I need to overcome to even be awarded or considered to be awarded a small portion of the contract?

A:  The State of Washington does not have in-state preferences and evaluates proposals based on their responsiveness and responsibility.  There are penalties applicable to firms submitting bids from states which grant a preference to their own in-state businesses.  Please refer to the “8.  Instate Preference-Reciprocity” section in the Standard Terms and Conditions for details.  

23. Q: There are certain products we manufacture, but being that we are smaller, I can't envision us being as price competitive as the larger players.  Should I just forgo bidding on these items?

A:  A proposer must bid on all specified items that are available to it through independent distribution channels.  
24. Q:  I thought I had heard that bid negotiations will begin with those vendors who have been awarded/approved?  What negotiations are being referenced?

A:  The State will negotiate with apparently successful proposers.  As described in Section 4.2, the apparently successful proposers shall bring updated contract pricing that meets the Maximum Contract Item Pricing requirements to a contract negotiation event.  There, the apparently successful proposers may ask the state to waive the Maximum Contract Item Pricing requirement for no more than 10% of the line items in any one product category/module.  During negotiations, the state will determine to what extent, if any, it will waive the requirement for Maximum Contract Item Pricing.  Negotiations to potentially improve certain non-cost factors will also take place at this time.   
25. Q: It doesn't look like there will be any set asides or preferential treatment for small business.  Section 1 mentions small business but seems to exclude any special treatment.  Is this correct?
A:  That is correct.  The State of Washington does not, per its statutes, give preference to any business, regardless of size, status, etc.  However, the state does support a diverse supplier pool, including small, minority, and women-owned firms.  In turn, we encourage small business participation through subcontracting relationships between large and small businesses, as per our message delivered at the pre-proposal conference on October 27.
26. Q:  Please provide examples of when delivery of Central Stores’ items would be applicable to locations other than the Tumwater warehouse. (RFP 09305, Appendix A.6)
A:  While the Bulk Purchasing RFP has been designed primarily for Central Stores’ use, all state agencies, institutions of higher education, and political subdivisions may purchase off the resulting contract(s).  These entities may need delivery to locations other than Tumwater.  This said, it is anticipated that the majority of bulk orders will be placed by Central Stores.
27. Q:  If a vendor is to bid on the bulk purchasing only, it appears that deliveries                could be required to any point in the state for bulk purchases rather than just to the main warehouse in Tumwater.  Is this correct or if we bid on the bulk purchases, would we only be responsible for delivery to Tumwater?
A:  The prices you bid on the bulk purchasing RFP should be for Central Stores’ Tumwater warehouse delivery.  In Appendix A.6, “Mark Ups for Other Delivery,” you are given an opportunity to specify what percentage markup, if any, will be applicable to your proposed pricing for delivery to other regions of the state.  
28. Q: On the bulk purchasing RFP, will you accept bids for pallet quantities only as opposed to both the pallet quantity and unit pack?

A:  No, we ask that you provide bids for both pallet quantities and quantity unit packs.  

29. Q:  You are asking for HP remanufactured toner cartridges and HP does not remanufacture any cartridges. They only make new ones and I might be wrong but I believe you have a bid for new cartridges already. I am still confused because I was under the impression you wanted remanufactured cartridges.

A:  Thank you for bringing this issue to our attention.  For all the remanufactured toner cartridges listed in Appendix A.2 and A.3 of the bulk purchasing RFP, please treat the manufacturer name as “House Brand” instead of the brand name specified, and bid equivalents that are equal in performance and quality.  Also, to clarify, these RFPs are seeking both new and remanufactured cartridges.  Please refer to the headings within Appendix A differentiating between “New” and “Remanufactured” cartridges.

30. Q:  The contract states that they want the credit card number to go on the packing slip in the box.  We believe the packing slip should not show the full credit card number.  We ship orders to DOC and they specifically ask that we black out any credit card information. Dept. of Corrections does not want the inmates to see any credit card numbers.

A:  Section 6.6B of the RFP outlines desirable terms and seeks to understand your ability to meet these.  Specifically, in the section on shipping, we ask about your ability to provide “Purchase Order or Purchasing Card Number” on the packing slip.  Some end users would like this information on the packing slip, and we would like to know whether you are capable of providing it.  This does not mean you will be required to provide P-card numbers on packing slips for users who don’t want it.  

31. Q:  The turn around time should be five days.  It is difficult for a toner remanufacturer like myself to make certain cartridges and deliver them within two days.  This is due to the scarcity of cores.
A:  The delivery time for toner in the bulk RFP is 5 days ARO.  In the case of the desktop delivery RFP, our end users require delivery within 2 business days.  Please note that there are very few remanufactured toner cartridges on the desktop delivery RFP’s toner Essentials List. 

32. Q:  Items 8-17 include toner from Curtis Young listed as NEW.  I would specifically like to address item 16, toner for the Lexmark T520-T522 provided by Curtis Young.
Lexmark has invested hundreds of millions of dollars in research and development and has obtained a large number of U.S. and foreign patents on its imaging technology including laser toner cartridges.  Lexmark has not provided any third party a license under Lexmark patents to manufacture new Lexmark toner cartridges and is not aware of any third party that has invested in technology that avoids Lexmark's patent rights.

Based on Lexmark's experience, companies that claim that they have "compatible" Lexmark toner cartridges are really remanufacturing/repairing used Lexmark toner cartridges.  These third party entities have not invested in technology that works around Lexmark patent rights.  Hence, if these remanufactured toner cartridges were truly new, not remanufactured, the third party would be infringing Lexmark patent rights.  Since remanufactured toner cartridges reuse a large number of Lexmark spent parts, we presume that these third party remanufacturers take the legal position that their toner cartridges come within the patent law doctrine of permissible repair.  In reliance upon this patent law doctrine of 'repair,' these third parties cannot claim the benefits of repairing a spent item to avoid infringing the patent rights of another while, at the same time, claiming that it has a new product.  This type of claim is, at best, disingenuous.

Lexmark would be willing to have our engineers inspect any third party cartridges that are claimed to be new and provide a written statement of our findings to the State of Washington.
A:  Thank you for bring this to our attention.  We acknowledge that Curtis Young toner cartridges are remanufactured cartridges, 
33.  Q:  Are copies of the current vendor's full line catalogs required with the bid
to validate product selection?
A:  No, copies of vendors’ full line catalogs are not required with the proposal.  
 

34.  Q:  On railcar paper deliveries, what is the delivery destination (final railcar destination) and is the State able to unload railcars? In other words, what is the State expecting in the pricing on rail car deliveries? (Bulk RFP)

A:  The final rail car destination is a railhead in Olympia/Tumwater that will allow commercial access.  Yes, the State will be responsible for unloading rail cars and transporting the paper to its warehouse.

35. Q:  Please clarify what is meant by house brand.  Please differentiate between a dealer’s private label brand vs. their leading manufacturer brand name (i.e. Quality Park, Columbian, Universal/Sparco, Office Depot).
A:  A house brand is a vendor’s private label brand.  Examples include “Office Max” brand and “Corporate Express” brand.  These are brands which are typically not available to numerous office supplies resellers through independent distribution channels.  We are willing to accept any equivalent products that are equal in performance and quality in cases where “House Brand” is specified.

36. Q:  RFP 09205 asks, “Does your company’s online ordering website have the ability to interface with a state reseller’s website in order to provide end users with one-stop shopping?” (pg 23, 6.6B 1 C)  Please give examples of State resellers and define the level of interface required. 

A:   The key state reseller is the Department of General Administration’s Central Stores.  We are looking to understand the level of interface you are capable of providing.  For example, we would like to know if it will be possible for end users to go to one website and place orders concurrently with both Central Stores and your company.

37. Q:  In order to fully evaluate the impact of a floor, we request that each bidder submit a net pricer including all items, and indicate which items would be affected by a floor.  Each respondent should provide their List, Cost, and Net prices of each item bid.   (Appendix A.3)

A:  In the “Office Supplies Non-Essentials List Pricing” section, where a floor is applicable, we are asking for list price, % discount off list, cost, and bid price. 

38. Q:  In order to ensure that all bids are evaluated based on a similar sized proprietary catalog, please define the minimum number of items required in each respondent’s proprietary, not wholesaler, catalog (i.e. 10,000, 14,000).  (RFP 09205, Pg. 14, 6.4B, pgh 2)
A:  We do not believe there is a need to define the minimum number of items required in each proposer’s proprietary catalog.  It is sufficient that proposers are able to provide Essentials List items at a competitive price, and offer non-Essentials List items at a competitive percentage discount off of a non-proprietary, industry-standard price list (i.e. United Stationers or SP Richards).

39. Q:  Source of List Prices – we request that all dealers use the same industry standard source instead of allowing each dealer to choose their own non-proprietary source.  
A:  We are allowing proposers to choose which non-proprietary, industry standard price list they offer discounts off of because we know all vendors do not regularly work with the same one.  Please bear in mind there are only a limited number of such price lists available (United Stationers and SP Richards being the primary examples).  

40. Q:  Please clarify if the State will accept one rebate for each incentive in lieu of discounts from invoices?  (RFP09205, Appendix A.5)

A:  No, the state is not interested in receiving rebates for each cost incentive in lieu of discounts on invoices.  The state is requesting discounts rather than rebates because these allow for simplified distribution of savings to end users.

41. Q:  To better assist the State with spend analysis, demand management, and contract compliance, please define how the monthly invoice report will be used.  (RFP 09205 Appendix D)  

A:  The monthly invoice report will allow the State to track on-contract spending, identify when various discounts are applicable (i.e. an EFT discount or online ordering discount), and ensure that the appropriate discounts have been applied.  In general, the reporting outlined in Appendix D will allow the State to monitor contract utilization, understand future buying patterns, and refresh the Essentials Lists as end user needs evolve.

42. Q: By asking for bids on OEM toners, and not evaluating lower cost substitutes for cost, you are limiting competition and thereby limiting savings.  What you should do is bid two separate bids - one for OEM and the other for remanufactured.

A:  We are asking for bids on a specific list of OEM toners because these reflect user needs.  There are also some remanufactured toners for which we are requesting bids. 

43. Q:  “Deliveries falling below minimum activity level will be shipped and billed at an established % of contractors’ rates with its carrier.”  Please give examples and define this calculation.  (RFP 09205, Pg 16, 6.6 A 1)

A:  For deliveries less than $50 in value, the state will pay an established percentage of the shipping rates the contractor receives from its carrier.  For example, the state might pay 10% of the shipping costs applicable to any delivery falling below $50. The State and awarded vendors will reach agreement on the established percentage during contract negotiations.   
The end of the document

Amendment #2 RFP 09205
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